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DATE: November 20, 1996

TO:  Daniel R. Tunnell
FROM: Dan Regan

RE: PUC Docket No. Z-00275757: Smith v. Equitable Gas Company

At its November 1, 1996 Public Meeting, the Commission adopted an Opinion and Order (copy
attached) disposing of the referenced ability-to-pay case. Given your request for certain filings in this
docket, it seemed appropriate to provide an analysis.

Smith is noteworthy for its findings regarding federal bankruptcy law pre-emption of Chapter 56,
including the Chapter 56 procedures governing notice and personal contact prior to termination of service.
Ms. Smith filed a Chapter 13 bankruptcy petition in June 1994. Equitable learned of Ms. Smith's filing in
September 1994, and responded by dividing her account into two separate accounts: one for services
rendered before Ms. Smith filed her petition and one for services rendered thereafter. As to the account
for post-petition services, Equitable requested Ms. Smith provide a security deposit as a condition to
receiving continued service. In making this request, Equitable acted with its rights under Section 366(b)
of the Bankruptcy Code, which provides that a utility "may alter, refuse [or] discontinue service if neither
the trustee nor the debtor, within twenty days . . . furnishes adequate assurance of payment, in the form
of a deposit or other security.”

In May 1995, Equitable terminated service for failure to provide the requested deposit. Ms. Smith
then filed a complaint, which came for hearing before ALJ Gesoff. ALJ Gesoff found the Commission
lacked jurisdiction over much of Ms. Smith's complaint. For example, Ms. Smith paid Equitable $400 in
September 1994. In her complaint, Ms. Smith claimed the $400 was intended as a security deposit against
post-petition services. Her check was not designated as such, nor did she communicate her intentions to
Equitable. Equitable applied the $400 to the balance on the post—petition account, and continued to
maintain that no security deposit had been paid. ALJ Gesoff ruled the Commission had no jurisdiction over
Ms. Smith's claim regarding Equitable's application of the $400. (On the chance the Commission would
overrule his jurisdictional decision and address the case on its merits, ALJ Gesoff opined that Ms. Smith
failed to meet her burden of proving that Equitable’s actions constituted unreasonable service under the
Public Utility Code.)

ALJ Gesoff also found that federal bankruptcy law pre-empted any possible application of the
Commission's Chapter 56 regulations regarding medical certification, 52 Pa. Code §§ 56.111-.118. This
ruling was consistent with the Commission's 1981 case of Anyanwu v. Philadelphia Electric Company,
where the Commission noted that its medical certification regulations, which are based on the establishment
of a payment arrangement, are inconsistent with the Bankruptcy Code, which gives the trustee and federal
bankruptcy court exclusive jurisdiction over the debtor's post-petition assets, liabilities, income and debts.

In contrast to his overall finding of federal pre-emption, ALJ Gesoff found that the Bankruptcy Code
did not pre-empt the Chapter 56 provisions regarding notice and personal contact prior to termination. ALJ
Gesoff based his finding on the following passage from Anyanwu (citation omitted):

It is noted that under § 366(b), the respondent may terminate service if adequate
assurance of payment has not been made. While this Commission is without jurisdiction
to determine what constitutes "adequate assurance of payment,” we will require that the
respondent, in the event it elects to proceed under § 366(b), adhere to the provisions of
[Chapter 56] with respect to notice and personal contact prior to termination.
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ALJ Gesoff ruled that Equitable provided Ms. Smith with adequate notice, but failed to follow two of the
regulations governing personal contact. First, Equitable violated Section 56.93(1) by not attempting to make
personal contact three days before termination. Second, Equitable violated Section 56.95 by failing to post
a 48-hour notice, and terminating service instead, when no one responded to the field representative's
knock on Ms. Smith's door.

ALJ Gesoff found that each violation of Chapter 56 constituted a separate unreasonable interruption
of service in violation of Section 1501 of the Public Utility Code. ALJ Gesoff further found that "Owing to
the circumstances of this case, Equitable’s transgression had serious consequences, even though the
termination was for one day in the spring." The maximum penaity for a violation of Section 1501 is $1000,
and ALJ Gesoff ruled that for Equitable's two violations it would pay a penalty of $2000.

Inits exceptions to the penalty, Equitable successfully argued that the Bankruptcy Code pre—empts
all of Chapter 56, including the provisions governing notice and personal contact. Equitable pointed out,
and a majority of the Commission agreed, that Section 366(b) set a clear, 20-day limit on the exposure
utilities face when continuing service after a customer has filed a bankruptcy petition. The notice and
personal contact provisions frequently cause service to be extended well beyond 20 days, a result directly
at odds with the federal scheme. A 4-1 majority of the Commissioners agreed with Equitable's arguments,
and reversed the penality.

Commissioner Hanger filed the lone dissent, claiming that federal bankruptcy law can be
harmonized with, and in fact provides some express accommodation of state procedural protections for
consumers facing termination. In addition to citing the Commission's precedent in Anyanwu, Commission
Hanger cited Begley v. Philadelphia Electric Co., 760 F.2d 46, a Philadelphia federal appeals decision which
found that utilities must follow state regulatory procedures for terminations resulting from a debtor's failure
to pay for post-petition services. Commissioner Hanger reasoned that if Chapter 56 has to be followed for
a Begley termination, Chapter 56 should also be required for a termination that arises from the debtor's
failure to provide adequate assurance.

Commissioner Hanger's argument rests on the premise that Section 366(b) provides procedural
rights while the Chapter 56 termination provisions provide procedural rights. With the federal and state
rights thus dichotomized, Commissioner Hanger argued that there is no conflict: the utility’s substantive
rights under Section 366(b) are not compromised by granting Chapter 56 protections to the customer. The
majority implicitly found against this premise. Section 366(b) does in fact grant utilities a procedural right
by freeing them from state procedures that could result in the continued provision of unsecured service.
Conversely, Chapter 56 provides substantive rights in that customers continue to receive and consume
utility services while Chapter 56 steps are followed.

Copies ofALJ Gesoff's Initial Decision, Equitable's exceptions and the Commission's Opinion and
Order (including Commissioner Hanger's dissent) are enclosed for your review. | would be pleased to
discuss this case with you or the Customer Relations Committee at your request.

Enclosures

Related Cases:

Dudley v. The Peoples Natural Gas Company, Docket No. C-00967991 (adopted Mar. 13, 1997, entered
Mar. 21, 1997) Filing of Chapter 13 bankruptcy (1) erased Complainant's prior arrearage and required

Respondent utility to open a new account for the Complainant; (2) vacated prior PUC order directing BCS
and the Prothonotary to reject any further complaints by the Complainant.
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PENNSYLVANIA
PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION
Harrisburg, PA 17105-3265

Public Meeting held November 1, 1996

Commissioners Present:

John M. Quain, Chairman

Lisa Crutchfield, Vice Chairman

John Hanger, Dissenting - s<tatement attached
David W. Rolka

Robert K. Bloom

Eleanor C. K. Smith Z-00275757
V.

Equitable Gas Company

OPINION AND ORDER

BY THE COMMISSION:

Before the Commission for consideration and disposition
are the Exceptions filed by Equitable Gas Company ("Equitable")
on February 29, 1996, to the Initial Decision of Administrative
Law Judge ("ALJ") Larry Gesoff which was issued on February 9,
1996, relative to the above-captioned proceeding.

History of the Proceedings

1. By Complaint filed on June 6, 1995, Eleanor C. K.
Smith ("Ms. Smith" or "Complainant") alleged that Equitable
terminated her service without proper notice even though a
severely ill, bedridden person was on the premises and even
though she had made a deposit.

2. The Complainant further alleged that Equitable
deliberately refused to provide her with a full accounting of her
account despite her repeated requests for it, and that Equitable
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duplicated deposit. Finally, she alleged that Equitable refused
to remove late fees.

3. On July 17, 1995, Equitable filed an Answer and New
Matter denying the allegations contained in the Complaint.
Equitable asserted that, following adequate notice, it terminated
Ms. Smith’s service because she did not submit a bankruptcy
security deposit, but that it had restored service the next day
because the Complainant had paid the deposit.

4. Equitable further asserted that despite visits to
Ms. Smith’s premises by Equitable’s field personnel, no ill
person was encountered and Ms. Smith did not submit the medical
certificate Equitable had mailed to her. Finally, Equitable

asserted that as of June 9, 1995, Ms. Smith owed $1,022.05 on her
account.

5. The initial hearing, scheduled for September 12,
1995, was continued at the request of Ms. Smith.

6. The rescheduled initial hearing was held on October
26, 1995. Ms. Smith appeared and represented herself. Equitable
was represented by counsel. After the parties tried, and failed
to reach a settlement, Ms. Smith requested a continuance because
she had other matters scheduled for the afternoon. ALJ Gesoff
granted the continuance.

7. In Interim Order #1, dated October 26, 1995, ALJ
Gesoff directed Ms. Smith to provide him with dates, in November
and December, on which she would be available for the hearing. A
hearing was scheduled for December 21, 1995. On that date, Ms.
Smith contacted the ALJ and stated that she had fallen, was on
crutches, and could not attend the hearing due to the snow and
ice. Ms. Smith thereupon agreed to participate by telephone.
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Ms. Smith testified on her own behalf, and sponsored 19 exhibits.
Equitable presented one witness, who sponsored 15 exhibits.

8. 1In Interim Order #2, ALJ Gesoff directed Equitable
to mail Exhibits 1-15 to Ms. Smith. ALJ Gesoff further directed
Ms. Smith to submit any objections to the Exhibits to his office
by January 2, 1996, and to pay her budget bills when due, during
the pendency of the Commission’s Final Order in this proceeding.

9. By letter dated December 27, 1995, Ms. Smith
requested a five day extension of the due date named in Interim
Oorder #2, (i.e., January 2, 1996). By Interim Order #3, dated
January 2, 1996, the ALJ granted her request and gave her a due
date of January 8, 1996, to submit her objections to the ALJ and
counsel for Equitable. ALJ Gesoff further gave Equitable until
January 12, 1996, to respond to Ms. Smith’s submittal. The ALJ
indicated that no further submittals would be permitted.

10. On January 9, 1996, three copies of the
Complainant’s Response to December 21, 1995, Hearing, Admission
of Exhibits, and Motion for Exception (Complainant’s Response),
were delivered to the ALJ. Although one day past the due date,
the Complainant’s Response was considered timely because the
Pittsburgh State Office Building was closed on January 8, 1996,
due to a blizzard.

11. By Interim Order #4, dated January 12, 1996, the
ALJ reopened the record in this proceeding, rescinded that

portion of Interim Order #2 which directed Ms. Smith to pay her
budget bills pending the Commission’s Final Order in this
proceeding,! denied Ms. Smith’s objections to Equitable Exhibits

! In Interim Order #2, the ALJ had directed the Complainant
to pay budget bills pending the Commission’s Final Order.
However, the ALJ subsequently rescinded this portion of
Interim Order #2, as outlined above, because he realized
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1-15, admitted Equitable Exhibits 1-15 and Complainant’s Exhibit
T into the record of this proceeding, and closed the record. The
record consists of the above-mentioned exhibits, and a 94 page
transcription of the notes of testimony.

12. The Initial Decision of ALJ Gesoff was issued on
February 9, 1996. Exceptions to the Initial Decision were filed
as noted above.

Discussion

The Findings of Fact of ALJ Gesoff, as found on pages
6-13 of the Initial Decision, are hereby incorporated by
reference unless modified expressly or by necessary implication
by this Opinion and order.

Premised on his review, evaluation, and analysis of the
record as developed in this proceeding, the ALJ arrived at the
following Conclusions of Law:

1. The Commission has jurisdiction over the
parties to this proceeding. 66 Pa. cC.s.
Chapter 15.

2, The Commission does not have

jurisdiction over whether Equitable
should have applied part of the $400
Payment to an adeguate assurance
security deposit. Anvanwu v.
Philadelphia Electric Company, 55 Pa.
PUC 221 (1981); Title 11, United States
Code, Bankruptcy, 11 USC §§ 101 et seq.

3% The Commission does not have
jurisdiction over whether Equitable

that the Commission does not have jurisdiction to so direct
the Complainant because it would affect a debtor’s post-
petition finances, something over which the bankruptcy
court has continuing jurisdiction in a Chapter 13
proceeding. Anyanwu v. Philadelphia Electric Company, 55
Pa. PUC 221 (1981).
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improperly terminated service because an
ill person was in Ms. Smith’s residence.
Anyanwu v. Philadelphia Electric
Company, 55 Pa. PUC 221 (1981); Title
11, United States Code, Bankruptcy, 11
USC §§ 101 et seq.; 52 Pa. Code §§
56.111-118.

The Commission has jurisdiction over
Equitable’s notice and personal contact
before terminating Ms. Smith’s service.
Anvanwu v. Philadelphia Electric
Company, 55 Pa. PUC 221 (1981) .

The Commission has jurisdiction over Ms.
smith’s claim that Equitable improperly
failed to provide her with information
about her account. 66 Pa. C.S. §1501.

The automatic stay provision of 11 USC
§362 does not apply to this proceeding.

Equitable’s delay in providing account
information to Ms. Smith did not
constitute a violation of the Public
Utility Code. 66 Pa.C.S. §1501.

Equitable provided proper notice before
terminating Ms. Smith’s service. 52 Pa.
§56.91.

Equitable did not comply with the
commission’s regulations regarding
notice and personal contact before
terminating her service. 66 Pa.C.S.
§1501; 56 Pa. Code §§91-100.

Ms. Smith failed to meet her burden of
proving that Equitable did not provide
her with information about her account.
66 Pa. C.S. §332(a).

Ms. Smith failed to meet her burden of
proving that the amount of her budget
bill is improper, that Equitable’s
termination was punitive, that Equitable
overcharged her or that Equitable
charged improper late payment fees. 66
PatisChiSs e SIS0 (A )

The Commission has no jurisdiction over
claims for damages. The courts of

S
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Common Pleas retain original
jurisdiction over suits for damages.
Behrend v. Bell Telephone Co., 242 Pa.
Superior Ct. 47, 363 A.2d 1152 (1976).

13. Equitable should be assessed a $1,000
penalty for each violation of the Public
Utility Code. 66 Pa. C.S. §3301.

(I.D., pp. 33-34).

Premised on his review of the record herein, and his
Conclusions of Law, the ALJ recommended, inter alia, that the

subject Complaint should be sustained, in part, and dismissed, in
part, and that Equitable should be directed to pay a civil
penalty of two thousand dollars ($2,000) to the Commission for
its violation of the Public Utility Code.

Exceptions

Equitable takes two Exceptions to the Initial Decision
which can be summarized as follows:

(1) Equitable excepts to the ALJ’s
conclusion that it violated Commission
regulations in terminating the
Complainant’s service.

(2) Equitable excepts to the ALJ’s
recommendation that it be assessed a
$2,000 penalty for the alleged
violations of the Public Utility Code.

In its first Exception, Equitable contends that it
terminated the Complainant’s gas service in the instant
proceeding due to her refusal and/or failure to pay a bankruptcy
deposit, pursuant to Section 366 of the Bankruptcy Code, 11
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U.S.C. § 366,2 which mandates that, in order to obtain or
maintain utility service, a debtor must pay a bankruptcy deposit
to the utility as "adequate assurance." Equitable contends that
the Bankruptcy Courts authorize the utilities to terminate a
debtor’s utility service if that deposit is not timely paid.

We note that the ALJ Gesoff relied upon a 1981 PUC
proceeding® which stated in that the Commission would require
utilities to adhere to the provisions of Title 52, Pennsylvania
Code, Chapter 56, with respect to notice and personal contact
prior to termination. We note further that in the Anvanwu
decision, the Commission pointed out that:

[I]t is noted that under § 366(b), 11 USC
§366(b), the respondent may terminate service

2 section 366 of the United States Code, 11 USC §366 provides

as follows:

a) Except as provided in subsection (b) of
this section, a utility may not alter,
refuse or discontinue service to, or
discriminate against, the trustee of the
debtor solely on the basis that a debt
owed by the debtor to such utility for
service rendered before the order for
relief was not paid when due.

b) Such utility may alter, refuse,
discontinue service if neither the
trustee nor the debtor, within twenty
days after the date of the order for
relief, furnishes adeguate assurance of

ayment, in the form of a deposit or
other security, for service after such
date. On request of a party in interest
and after notice and a hearing, the court
may order reasonable modification of the
amount of the deposit or other security
necessary to provide adequate assurance
of payment. (Emphasis Added).

3

Anyanwu v. Philadelphia Electric Company, 55 Pa. PUC 221
(1981). .
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made. While this Commission is without
jurisdiction to determine what constitutes
"adequate assurance of payment," we will
require that the respondent, in the event it
elects to proceed under § 336(b), adhere to
the provisions of Title 52, Pennsylvania
Code, Chap (sic) 56, with respect to notice
and personal contact prior to the
termination. However, we cannot require the
respondent to comply with the provisions of
52 Pa. Code §§ 56.111 through 56.118.4

Based on the foregding language, the ALJ concluded that
the Commission should enforce its Chapter 56 regulations
regarding notice and personal contact before termination. The
ALJ further concluded that the Commission has jurisdiction to
consider this portion of the Complainant’s Complaint.

Pursuant to §332(e) of the Public Utility Code, 66 Pa.
C.S.A. §332(e), we take official notice of the fact that on June
6, 1994, the Complainant filed for Chapter 11 Bankruptcy with the
Federal District Court of Western Pennsylvania, at Bankruptcy
Case No. 94-21832JLC. Equitable received notice of the
Complainant’s bankruptcy petition on September 20, 1994, and by
letter dated October 5, 1994, Equitable notified the Complainant
of her obligation to pay a $296.00 bankruptcy deposit as adequate
assurance pursuant to the Bankruptcy Code. Despite several
notices, the Complainant failed to pay the bankruptcy deposit,
and on May 18, 1995, Equitable terminated the Complainant’s gas
service for failure to make adequate assurance of payment. As

noted supra, the Complainant filed the instant Complaint with us
on June 6, 1995.

* 55 Pa. PUC 222 (1981).
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It is to be noted at this Jjuncture that termination
pursuant to our regulations® can extend for far more than the 10-
day notice and perscnal contact which is referenced at 52 Pa.
Code §56.91, General Notice Provisions. The rationale behind the
provisions of 11 USC §366, quoted supra, is that a utility’s
exposure to loss should be limited to the 20 day period
referenced in the Statute, and that a utility should not be
forced "to provide services for which it may never be paid."
Begley v. Philadelphia Electric Co., 760 F.2d 46, 49 (3rd Cir.
1985) .

Equitable argues that it does, however, make every
attempt to give debtors more than the recommended 20 days notice.
Equitable argues further that, although it follows the Bankruptcy
courts’ recommendations to accept reasonable payment arrangements
on the security deposit when requested, in the instant case no
such requests were received from the Complainant, and it appears
that the Complainant chose to ignore the bankruptcy deposit
notices. (Equitable Exc., p. 4).

We note that Title 28 of the United States Code, 28 USC
Section 1471, provides that a United States District Court, and
its Bankruptcy Court, have exclusive jurisdiction over all civil
proceedings arising under Title 11, including matters involving
post-petition debts and adequate assurances. Accordingly, a
termination pursuant to 11 USC §366(b) falls under federal
jurisdiction. Any motions or petitions pertaining to such
deposits, known as "adequate assurances" must, therefore, be
brought before the Bankruptcy Court.

It is well settled that the Bankruptcy Courts are
empowered to authorize the utilities to terminate a debtor’s

utility service if the deposit is not timely paid. Under the

5 52 Pa. Code §56.81, et seq.
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[image: image12.png]provisions of Section 366, supra, if utility service has been
terminated, a utility must restore service to the debtor, upon
request, for the twenty days after the bankruptcy petition is
filed. During that period, the debtor must pay, or make
arrangements to pay, the adequate assurance in order to maintain
the service after the twenty day period.

Furthermore, if the debtor has active utility service
at the time the bankruptcy petition is filed, that service cannot
be terminated during the twenty day period. Servicg may,
however, be terminated after that period if adequate assurance is
ﬁot provided to the utility. In other words, after the twenty
d;y period, if the customer has no utility service, a utility
need not restore service until adequate assurance is provided.

If the utility service is active, a utility should not be forced
to continue providing such service to a debtor who fails to
provide adequate assurance. See Begle , Supra.

In enacting Section 366, supra, it was the intention of
Congress to strike a reasonable balance between the general need
of a bankruptcy debtor to receive utility services, and the right
of creditors, under Bankruptcy law, to refuse to do business with
the debtor without the protection of some adequate assurance of
future payments. In Begle , supra, the Court stated as follows:

The restriction on termination in section
366 (a) bars only those terminations which
issue "solely on the basis" that a debt
incurred prior to the bankruptcy order, was
not paid when due. Thus, by implication,
termination for failure to pay post-petition
bills would not seem to be barred by section
366(a). Accordingly, courts setting the
amount of "adequate assurance" have
considered the length of time necessary for
the utility to effect termination once the
billing cycle is missed. [citations omitted]
This reflects an understanding that the
utility will be allowed to commence

10
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termination procedures once a post-petition

payment is missed, despite the prior security
or "assurance" deposit.

We believe that such an approach is
consistent with the purpose and policy of
section 366, which is to prevent the threat
of termination from being used to collect
pre-petition debts, which not forcing the
utility to provide services for which it may
never be paid. [citations omitted]

Begley, 760 F.2d at 49.

The Bankruptcy Courts have construed the provisions
of Section 366, supra, literally in permitting utilities to
refuse service after 20 days following the order for relief have
passed, if the debtor fails to provide the adequate assurance
requested by the utility. Hanratty v. Philadelphia Electric Co.,
907 F.2d 1418 (CA 3, 1990). Accordingly, the general practice
has developed for a twenty day notice of the requirement for the

bankruptcy deposit, followed by termination of service on the
twenty-first day if no such deposit is received.

We note that although the Bankruptcy Code makes
explicit references to notice and time periods, it makes no
reference to deference to state regulations regarding notice and
time periods. Due to federal pre-emption, Commission regulations
regarding termination notice and personal contact duties have no
bearing in a termination proceeding under 11 USC §336(b). The
Bankruptcy Courts have deferred to state laws and regulations in
other types of terminations, but there is no clear deference to
state regulations with regard to terminations for failure to pay
the adequate assurance deposit.®

6 In Begley, supra, at page 49, the Court of Appeals found

that utilities must follow state termination procedures
when terminating for missed post-petition payments, however
the court emphasized that this was in the case of non-
payment of post-petition debts, noting in addition that
termination for failure to pay adeguate assurance was not

11
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We conclude, accordingly, that this entire Complaint
should have been dismissed due to lack of subject matter
jurisdiction. The ALJ appropriately found that the Commission
did not have jurisdiction over the bulk of the issues raised by
the Complainant. He did not, however, appropriately recognize
the Bankruptcy Court’s exclusive jurisdiction over the
termination of service pursuant to 11 U.S.C. Section 366(b). The
Complainant herein has remedies available to her in federal
court, and any unresolved issues she has over the termination, or
over her payment of adeguate assurance, should have been raised
in the Bankruptcy Court. Accordingly, we shall grant Equitable’s
Exception No. 1.

Since we have found that Egquitable did not violate the
Public Utility Code or our Regulations in the termination
procedures applied to this Complainant, we believe that it is
inappropriate to levy any fine on Equitable. Accordingly, it is
not necessary to address the merits of Equitable’s second
Exception.

Conclusion

We have carefully reviewed the record as developed in
this proceeding, including the ALJ’s Initial Decision and the
Exceptions taken thereto. Premised on our review, we find that a
portion of the ALJ’s Initial Decision is not supported by

substantial evidence in the record. We further conclude that the

at issue before that court.
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Exceptions of the Respondent are meritorious and, as a result,
they are granted; THEREFORE,

IT IS ORDERED:

1. That the Exceptions filed by Equitable Gas Company
on February 29, 1996, to the Initial Decision herein be, and

hereby are, granted consistent with this Opinion and Order.

2. That the Initial Decision of Administrative Law
Judge Larry Gesoff be, and hereby is, reversed in part,
consistent with the discussion in the body of this Opinion and
order.

3. That the Complaint of Eleanor C. K. smith at Docket
No. Z-00275757 be, and hereby is, dismissed.

BY T COMMIBESION,

ohn G. Alfcxd
Secretary

ORDER ADOPTED: November 1, 1996

orRDER ENTERED: NOV (7 1996

13
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PENNSYLVANIA PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION
Harrisburg, Pennsylvania

ELEANOR C.K. SMITH PUBLIC MEETING-
v. NOVEMBER 1, 1996
EQUITABLE GAS COMPANY BEP-96-08A-129%

DOCKET NO. Z-00275757

STATEMENT OF COMMISSIONER JOHN HANGER

Under federal bankruptcy law, a utility may demand
"adequate assurance" of future payment in the form of a security
deposit. See, 11 U.s.C. Sec 366 (a), (b). The utility may
discontinue service if the payment is not made within 20 days. 1In
this case, Complainant failed to pay "adequate assurance" as
required. The outstanding issue is whether the utility must comply
with state termination procedures in such circumstances or whether
the state procedures are preempted by the federal bankruptcy law.

The Commission decided this issue in 1981 in Anyanwu V.
phila. FElectric Company, 55 Pa. P.U.C. 221. In that case, the
Commission found that:

"While this Commission is without jurisdiction
to determine what constitutes "adeguate
assurance of payment," we will require that
the respondent, in the event it elects to
proceed under Sec. 366(b), adhere to the
provisions of Title 52, Pennsylvania Code,
Chap. 56, with respect to notice and personal
contact prior to the termination."

This case presents no substantive reason to reverse this
Ccommission’s 15-year old position. For this reason, the ALJ
properly followed and applied commission precedent in concluding
that Equitable improperly failed to comply with Commission personal
contact procedures prior to termination.

In particular, no court decisions have refuted that
conclusion since 1981, and generally would support the existing
Commission precedent. In Begley V. Philadelphia Electric Co., 760
F. 2d 46, 49 (3rd Ccir. 1985), the most relevant appellate case, the
Court found that utilities must follow state termination procedures
when terminating service for missed post-petition payments.
Pennsylvania law requires utilities to comply with personal contact
requirements for all customers, and doing so does not interfere
with the substantive right for utilities to terminate service in
the absence of adeguate assurance pursuant to federal law. Thus,
the issue is not one concerning "adequate assurance," which would
be solely within bankruptcy court jurisdiction, but whether the
consumer is to be denied the procedural protections typically
available under state law. Since the Bankruptcy Code generally
prohibits discrimination solely due to the filing of a bankruptcy
petition, denying procedural standards under state law is not
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Thus, the ALJ conclusion should be affirmed, although I
believe the $2000 recommended fine is too harsh under the
circumstances. I encourage all utilities to comply with Chapter 56
procedures that are not in conflict with the Bankruptcy Code.

OdRan B\ 1446 /gﬁ?\/\f\ \‘\(W\ﬁ&f\

DATED’ JOHN HANGER, COFMMISSIONER





